

Lee Saunders

Elissa McBride

Vice Presidents

Jody Barr New Britain, CT

Denise Berkley

Mark Bernard Boston, MA

Ron Briggs

Stacy Chamberlain

Connie Derr Albuquerque, NM

Daniel DiClemente

Shannon S. Douvier

Denise Duncan

David R. Fillman Harrisburg, PA

Craig A. Ford

Henry A. Garrido New York, NY

R. Sean Grayson

Vicki Hall

I. David Henderson

Johanna Puno Hester San Diego, CA

Danny J. Homan

Kathryn Lybarger

Roberta Lynch

Christopher Mabe

Glenard S. Middleton Sr.

Douglas Moore Jr.

Michael Newman

Debbie Parks

Randy Perreira

Steven Quick Sr.

Jose Ramirez San Juan, PR

Lawrence A. Roehrig Lansing, MI

Joseph P. Rugola

Alan F. Shanahan Los Angeles, CA

Paul Spink

Mary E. Sullivan

Anthony Wells

Mike Yestramski

July 13, 2021

Eric O. Larsen, President **AFSCME Local 444** 12 Meadow Way Fairfax, CA 94930

Dear Brother Larsen:

We have completed our review of the proposed amendment to the Local 444 Constitution, which you submitted. The amendment has been approved. In addition, we made the following revisions:

- 1. Article IV, Section 3. We have updated the dues-rate language to reflect the local's current rate as you provided.
- 2. Article V, Section 5. We have updated your quorum to comply with Article IX, Section 17, of the *International Constitution* which states that the guorum for every local union shall be greater than the number of voting members of the local executive board. The local has increased the size of the executive board; therefore, we have established a minimum quorum of 16 members in good standing.

Enclosed are two complete copies of the local constitution, as amended, with my signature of approval on the final page. Should the local amend this constitution in the future, please submit the amendments for approval after they have been adopted by the membership.

In solidarity,

LEE SAUNDERS President

LS/TP:nd

Enclosures

Mike Sukal, Director, Organizing and Field Services CC:

Walter Blair, Western Regional Director

EJ Serrano, Western Regional Assistant Director

Charles E. Allen, Executive Director, AFSCME District Council 57 Evan T. Klein-Corman, Recording Secretary, AFSCME Local 444

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO

TEL (202) 429-1000 FAX (202) 429-1293 TDD (202) 659-0446 WEB www.afscme.org 1625 L Street, NW, Washington, DC 20036-5687

Constitution

for

East Bay, California, Municipal Utility District Employees

Local 444

Article I Name

The name of this organization shall be East Bay, California, Municipal Utility District Employees, Local 444 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO (hereinafter referred to as "the Local").

Article II Affiliations

This local shall be affiliated with California District Council 57 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees; the California Labor Federation, AFL-CIO; the Alameda Labor Council, AFL-CIO; and the Central Labor Council of Contra Costa County, AFL-CIO.

Article III Objectives

Section 1. The objectives of this local are:

- A. To promote the organizations of workers in general and public employees in particular.
- B. To promote the welfare of the membership and to provide a voice in determination of terms and conditions of employment. We are committed to the process of collective bargaining as the most desirable, democratic, and effective method to achieve this. Both as union members and as citizens, we also shall employ legislative and political action.
- C. To promote civil service legislation and career service in government.
- D. To provide research and educational services and activities designed to assist members and affiliates.
- E. To foster cooperation among affiliates.
- F. To cooperate with other labor organizations in particular, and other segments of our society in general toward the end that the material riches of American society be more justly distributed as the moral promise of American life be realized.

Article IV Membership and Dues

<u>Section 1</u>. All employees of the East Bay Municipal Utility District in Alameda and Contra Costa counties, California, except those within the jurisdiction of Local 2019, East Bay Municipal Utility District Clerical, Technical, and Professional Employees, are eligible for membership in this local, subject to the requirements of the constitution of the International Union.

- <u>Section 2</u>. Application for membership shall be made on a standard application form. Unless such form includes a valid authorization for payroll deduction of dues, the application shall be accompanied by the current month's dues.
 - Section 3. The monthly membership dues of the local shall be \$77.50 per member.
- Section 4. Membership dues shall be payable monthly in advance to the local secretary-treasurer and in any event shall be paid not later than the 15th day of the month in which they become due. Any member who fails to pay dues by the 15th day of the month in which they become due shall be considered delinquent, and upon failure to pay dues for two consecutive months shall lose their good standing status and stand suspended. Provided, however, that any person who is paying dues through a system of regular payroll deduction, bank draft, or similar system, shall for so long as such person continues to pay through such deduction method, be considered in good standing.
- <u>Section 5</u>. A member suspended under the above section may be reinstated to membership in the local on payment of all arrearages or upon payment of a reinstatement fee of \$7.00 plus the current month's dues.

Article V Meetings

- Section 1. Regular meetings of this local shall be held on the third Thursday of each month at a time and a place to be fixed by the membership or the local executive board; except the day and location of the meeting may be changed on an occasional basis to accommodate location availability, in which case the nearest available day preceding the third Thursday, excluding Friday through Monday, shall be selected, and the change must be posted at least one month prior to the changed meeting date.
- <u>Section 2</u>. General membership meetings and executive board meetings are closed meetings. Only AFSCME Local 444 members in good standing shall be admitted. Guests shall be permitted by consent of the chair. All meetings are open to accredited representatives of the International Union.
- <u>Section 3</u>. The executive board of the local shall meet at the first Thursday of each month unless otherwise specified by the president.
- <u>Section 4</u>. Special meetings may be called by the local president, the local executive board, or by petition filed with the president and signed by one-fourth of the members of the local. Special meetings may also be called by the International President or by an authorized representative of the International President.
- <u>Section 5</u>. The number of members required to conduct a regular meeting is sixteen (16).

Article VI Officers, Nominations and Elections

Section 1. The officers of this local shall be a president, a 1st vice-president, a 2nd vice-president, a secretary-treasurer, a recording secretary, a sergeant-at-arms, a chief steward, a correspondence secretary, a member relations secretary and six (6) executive board members, and these fifteen (15) shall constitute the local's executive board. All officers shall be elected for two years, except in the 2021 election three (3) executive board members receiving the highest vote count shall be elected for two years and the fourth shall be elected for one (1) year. In addition, there shall be elected three members who shall serve as trustees. The trustees shall be elected to staggered three-year terms of office.

<u>Section 2</u>. Nominations of officers shall be made at the regular June meeting. At least fifteen (15) days' notice shall be given the membership prior to such meeting.

<u>Section 3</u>. To be eligible for office, a member must be in good standing for a period of not less than one year.

Section 4. Officers shall be elected annually by the following method:

- A. Upon being nominated and having not declined the nomination, the name of the candidate shall be placed on the ballot.
- B. Time of balloting shall be on the day of the regular July meeting between 5 p.m. and 8 p.m., at the regular place of meetings of the local. Ballots shall be composed by an Election Committee and mailed to all members of the local at their last known address. Each ballot shall be accompanied by a blank envelope and a stamped return envelope. Ballots should be received by members at least twenty (20) days prior to the balloting. Ballots shall be returned in the blank envelope, which shall have been inserted into the signed return envelope for mailing. Ballots not received in the offices of the local by the time of balloting will not be accepted for counting.
- C. The ballots shall be tallied by the Election Committee. The results of the tally shall be certified by the committee and the membership shall be notified of the results.
- D. The Election Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members of the local, appointed by the president after nominations have been received and accepted. No member of the Election Committee may be a candidate for office.

<u>Section 5</u>. All matters concerning nominations and elections in this local shall be subject to the provisions of Appendix D, entitled Elections Code, of the International Union Constitution.

<u>Section 6</u>. Vacancies in office shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by the following:

- A. Nominations of candidates shall be made at the membership meeting following the occurrence of the vacancy, provided, that notice has been mailed to the membership at least fifteen days before such meeting advising them of the existence of the vacancy and that nominations will be held at such meeting.
- B. Candidates will be elected by a majority vote of the membership, at the membership meeting following the nominations.
- C. Members who are scheduled to work while the membership meeting is in session, will be allowed to vote between 10 a.m. and 2 p.m. on the day of the membership meeting. Voting will take place at the Union Hall and will be conducted by the Election Committee. In addition, the polls will also be open to any other member who wishes to vote between 10 a.m. and 2 p.m. instead of at the meeting regardless of reason, however, members shall vote only once.

<u>Section 7</u>. Every officer shall, upon assuming office, subscribe to the Obligation of an Officer contained in Appendix B of the International Union Constitution.

<u>Section 8</u>. All monies expended by the local must be authorized and approved by the membership of the local at a regular meeting. The executive board shall be authorized to defray incidental expenses subject to the approval of the membership.

Article VII Duties of Officers and Executive Board

Section 1. The president shall:

- A. preside at all meetings of the local and of the executive board.
- B. be a member of all committees except election committees.
- C. countersign all checks drawn against the funds of the local.
- D. appoint all standing committees and all special committees of the local, subject to the approval of the executive board.
- E. report periodically to the membership regarding the progress and standing of the local and regarding the president's official acts.

Section 2. The 1st vice-president shall:

- A. assist the president in the work of the president's office.
- B. in the absence of the president or in the president's inability to serve, preside at all meetings and perform all duties otherwise performed by the president.
- C. upon approval by the local executive board, be authorized to act as cosigner of checks drawn on the local's funds in place of either the president or the secretary-treasurer.

<u>Section 3</u>. The 2nd vice-president shall assist in general work among the members to keep the organization active and shall assist the president in giving the local tone and direction.

Section 4. The secretary-treasurer shall:

- A. receive and receipt for all monies of the local.
- B. deposit all money so received in the name of the local in a bank or banks selected by the executive board, and money so deposited shall be withdrawn only by checks signed by the president and the secretary-treasurer.
- C. prepare and sign checks for such purposes as are required by the constitution or are authorized by the membership or the executive board.
- D. prepare and submit the monthly membership report to the International Union office and see that a check is drawn in payment of the local's per capita tax each month and sent to the International Secretary-Treasurer.
- E. keep an accurate record of receipts and disbursements and shall, once each month, submit to the membership a monthly operating statement of the financial transactions of the local for the previous month.
- F. act as custodian of all properties of the local.
- G. give a surety bond for an amount to be fixed by the executive board of the local union, at the expense of the local union and through the International Union.

Section 5. The recording secretary shall:

A. keep a record of the proceedings of all membership meetings and all executive board meetings.

- B. keep a record of all decisions made by the executive board.
- C. perform such other duties as the executive board may require.

Section 6. The correspondence secretary shall:

- A. carry on the official correspondence of the local, except as the executive board may direct otherwise.
- B. keep the local's membership mailing list current.
- C. perform such other duties as the executive board may require.

<u>Section 7</u>. The member relations secretary shall:

- A. be responsible for communications with the membership.
- B. make sure that proper notices are prepared and distributed for all meetings of the local.
- C. coordinate the Newsletter Committee and see to it that a newsletter is published on a regular basis.
- D. perform such other duties as the executive board may require.

<u>Section 8</u>. The trustees shall make or cause to be made at least semi-annually, an audit of the finances of the local and shall report to the membership on the results of such audit.

Section 9. The executive board shall be the governing body of the local except when meetings of the local are in session. All matters affecting the policies, aims and means of accomplishing the purposes of the local not specifically provided for in this constitution or by action of the membership at a regular or special meeting shall be decided by the executive board. The board shall meet at the call of the president, or a majority of the members of the board. A report on all actions taken by the executive board shall be made to the membership at the next following meeting. A majority of the members of the executive board shall be required for a quorum. All officers and executive board members of the local shall be regular in attendance at meetings of the executive board. If an officer or executive board member misses three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled executive board meetings without the approval of the executive board, such member shall be automatically removed from office and an election shall be held to fill the vacancy, as provided in Article VI, Section 6.

Article VIII Miscellaneous Provisions

- <u>Section 1</u>. This local shall at all times be subject to the provisions of the constitution of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.
- <u>Section 2</u>. Except to the extent specified in this constitution, no officer of the local union shall have the power to act on behalf of or otherwise bind the local except to the extent specifically authorized in writing by the president of the local union or by the executive board of the local union.
- <u>Section 3</u>. The negotiation of any changes, deletions or additions to, or the opening of the Memorandum of Understanding between AFSCME Local 444 and EBMUD, prior to the agreed upon expiration date shall require a specially called meeting and vote, in accordance with Article V, Section 3, of this constitution.
- <u>Section 4</u>. The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern this local union in all cases to which they are applicable and

in which they are not inconsistent with this constitution and special rules of this local union or of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.

Article IX Amendments

This constitution may be amended, revised or otherwise changed, only by a vote of two-thirds of the members voting on such proposed change, and such change shall take effect only upon written approval of the International President. Proposed amendments to this constitution must be made at a regular or special meeting of the local and read and voted on at a subsequent meeting of the local, adequate and proper notice having been given to the membership prior to the date on which the vote is taken. A written copy of the proposed amendment shall be furnished to every eligible vote at the meeting at which the vote is taken.

Approved by:

LEE SAUNDERS President

Approval date: July 13, 2021